
 

 
 

1 

Bovina Town Board 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

February 14, 2012 

 

RESOLUTIONS: 2012 – 30 – 42 

 

Board Members Present: Tina Molé, Supervisor; Charles McIntosh, Evelyn Stewart, Mark Rossley, Gerald Wright, Council; 

Catherine Hewitt, Town Clerk; Edward Weber, Highway Superintendent 

 

Others Present: Vince & Mary Trimbell, Ken Brown, Roger McIntosh, Glen McGuiness, Pat Miele, Marianne Parsons, 

Joanne McIntosh 

 

The meeting was opened at 6:02 PM by Supervisor Molé, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

2012-30 It was moved by Rossley, seconded by Stewart to approve the minutes of the Organizational Meeting of January 

10, 2012 as written.  All in favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays.   

 

2012-31 It was moved by Stewart, seconded by Rossley to approve the minutes of the January 10, 2012 monthly meeting 

as amended.  All in favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays. 

 

2012-32 The GENERAL bills (11-27) were audited prior to the meeting and approval for payment was moved by Wright, 

seconded by McIntosh.  All in favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays.    Councilman McIntosh said that long distance is currently costing the 

Town 15 cents a minute.  Joe Hanley will be looking into cheaper long distance rates.  Ken Brown said that magic jack is 

19.95 a year and gives you unlimited long distance.   

 

2012-33 The WATER bills (3-6) were audited prior to the meeting and approval for payment was moved by Rossley, 

seconded by Wright.  All in favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays.   

 

2012-34 The SEPTIC bills (3-4) were audited prior to the meeting and approval for payment was moved by Wright, 

seconded by Stewart.  All in favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays.   

 

2012-35 The LIGHTING bill (2-2) was audited prior to the meeting and approval for payment was moved by McIntosh, 

seconded by Rossley.  All in favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays. 

 

2012-36 The HIGHWAY bills (1-20) were audited prior to the meeting and approval for payment was moved by Stewart, 

seconded by Rossley.  All in favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays.  Councilman McIntosh asked Highway Superintendent Weber about the 

bill to Babcock Supply for spreader chains.  He thought they were replaced last year.  Weber said the chains were replaced 

but the sprockets shaft and bearings were not and they were worn out, which in turn ruins the spreader chains.  McIntosh 

asked about the purchase of a 3 ½ ton jack from NAPA.  Weber said that one was purchased because it was needed.  

McIntosh asked about the purchase of three new air tanks for the Volvo.  Weber said that one was leaking and the other 

two were close.  McIntosh asked about Amsterdam Overhead Door having a $150.00 charge of travel time and if they 

were the closest company.  Weber said that Amsterdam installed the doors.  McIntosh asked about the purchase of shafts 

and sprockets from Seneca Supply.  Weber said that when the spreader chains are replaced the shafts and sprockets also 

get changed.   

 

Councilman McIntosh asked if the Highway employees were now being paid off the time cards.  Weber said they are and 

the cards are used for their hourly pay.   

 



 

 
 

2 

Councilman Rossley said that at the January meeting, bullet 6.1 regarding all Highway Employees having a valid NYS CDL 

license was deleted and combined with 4.6, probationary periods. 

 

Supervisor Molé said that in the past the Board had approved 1 week vacation as compensation for deputy highway 

superintendent.  Highway Superintendent Weber had inquired and wanted clarification on this. 

 

2012-37 The Board went over changes in the employees policy discussed in January.  It was moved by Rossley, seconded 

by Wright to accept the changes.   

    Supervisor Molé   aye 

    Councilman McIntosh  aye 

    Councilwoman Stewart  Abstained 

    Councilman Rossley  aye 

    Councilman Wright  aye 

 

2012-38  It was moved by McIntosh, seconded by Stewart to appoint Donald Farley to fill the vacancy on the Planning 

Board.  The appointment will expire December 31, 2014.  All in favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays. 

 

2012-39 The Bovina Library Director has provided a copy of the 2011 Annual Report to the Board.  In the cover letter, 

permission is asked to have Maple Avenue closed from 4 – 8:30 PM for a dinner on July 21, 2012.  A request was also 

made for use of the Community Hall for the dinner in the event of rain.  The Board is hesitant to officially close the road 

due to the Fire and Ems needing access in case of an emergency.  It was moved by Rossley, seconded by Stewart to have 

Supervisor Molé write a letter to the Library Board and let them know their feelings on the road being closed and that the 

Community Hall will be made available on that day.   

 

Supervisor Molé told the Board that there was a problem with water billing on the 2012 water bills with 5 properties.  NYS 

Law says that a tax bill can be changed only if it’s a decrease, not an increase.  The problem has been corrected.  Two bills 

were corrected and new bills sent, two others were between family and they will take care of that internally and the final 

bill the property owner will not pay which will mean a $450 net loss for 2012.  Councilman Rossley commended the two 

families who are working it out themselves.   

 

Supervisor Molé explained that the Bovina Post Office is Town owned and the employees are Town employees, however 

everything still follows Federal Law.  The Andes Post Office oversees Bovina.  There needs to be 2 backups.  There are 

currently three backups available in Bovina.      

 

Supervisor Molé said that in regards to Highway Superintendent Weber’s request to purchase a sander for the pick-up, 

she feels this should wait until 2013 Budget time.  Weber had quotes from Tracey of $7,500, Cole’s $3,450 gas/$3,900 

electric, Babcock $4,400 and Springer’s $6,100 poly/$6,835 stainless and with a Honda engine, add $575.  The Board 

discussed the possibility of removing the existing pick-up box and replacing it with a flat bed, as well as the pros and cons 

of having a sander on the truck.   

2012-40 It was moved by Wright, seconded by McIntosh to have Weber come back with a proposal in August 2012 for the 

Board to review.  All in favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays.     

 

The Bookkeeper, Joe Hanley gave the Board a report on Income and Disbursements.  This will be given out each month 

with the monthly Supervisor’s Report.   

2012-41 It was moved by Stewart, seconded by Wright to authorize Hanley to set aside $7,713 in a reserve account.  All in 

favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays.  This came about due to a difference in the growth rate from 2011 to 2012.  Hanley will file with NYS.  

In 2013 this money can go against the General Levy. 



 

 
 

3 

Hanley explained that money from the sale of metal has gone into the Highway Fund in the past and the State says it has 

to go to General Fund and be transferred to the Highway Fund by a Board decision.  FEMA money also goes to the 

General Fund and also is transferred. 

Highway Superintendent Weber and Bookkeeper Joe Hanley are working on a work sheet showing vacation and sick time 

accumulated by the highway employees.  This will give a better idea of comp time. 

 

FINANCE REPORT – Councilwoman Stewart said that the report that the Bookkeeper just gave serves as a financial report. 

 

HIGHWAY COMMITTEE – Councilman Wright reported that two of the sanders had broken conveyor chains.  They have 

been replaced and one truck is back in service, the other is not.  The red International truck had a new clutch installed at 

Jamie’s Repair Shop in Oneonta.  The Mack is still waiting for welding to be done on the gear box and welding needs to be 

done on the body of the Mack.  The Mack can be used for plowing but is out of service for sanding currently.  Highway 

Superintendent, Weber had an OSHA Inspector come and do an inspection.  There were some minor violations that 

Weber said can easily be corrected.  There has been no more settling of the office at the highway building nor on the 

bridge on Bovina Road.  It’s time to apply for the CHIPS money; previously the amount asked for was $80,000.  Weber 

stated that he doesn’t mind the labor from FEMA payments going into the General Fund, but feels that the rest of the 

money should go to the Highway Fund.  Weber has estimates 5 estimates for a pick-up sander.   

 

BUILDINGS/GROUNDS – Councilman McIntosh and the Clerk will update the Community Hall Use Policy.  It will be brought 

back for Board approval in March.  The drain in the kitchen sink was replaced.  The light that is out in the main hall needs 

to be replaced.  Ken Brown said it’s not the bulb.  This will be looked into.   

 

TRANSFER STATION/PLAYGROUND – Councilman Rossley contacted Delaware County Transfer Station about the disposal 

of household batteries.  A container will be made available at the Transfer Station.  Bloomville Disposal can take them.  

There have been questions about the disposal of diabetic needles.  They cannot be disposed of at the Transfer Station.  

Rossley has gone over the Playground information and understands why the lawn company doesn’t want the 

responsibility of signing off on the equipment check list.   

 

Councilwoman Stewart said that the non-resident on South Kortright Mountain is still using the Transfer Station.  

Supervisor Molé will send a letter.   

 

The Lawn Mowing contract will be amended in March for approval in April.   

 

HIGHWAY SUPERINTENDENT – Highway Superintendent Weber had The Agreement for the Expenditures of Highway 

Funds for Capital Improvements to be signed by the Highway Superintendent, Supervisor and Council.  The Clerk will 

submit it. 

 

2012-42 It was moved by Stewart, seconded by Wright to approve spending $88,000 on the Bridge replacement on Bovina 

Road.  All in favor, 5 ayes, 0 nays. 

 

Highway Superintendent Weber said that he has received a letter on the Stream Corridor Management Program.  It’s 

been approved for work to be done on the stream behind the highway garage and by the septic field where it’s started to 

erode.  

The representative from the NYS Department of Labor met with Highway Superintendent Weber to go over what needs to 

be done to be up to date.  A few of the issues are, lack of seat belt use in the backhoe, MSDS forms missing, hand tools in 

poor condition, lack of an emergency response plan for their inspection, Violence in the Workplace Policy not posted.  

These issues need to be responded to by April 30, 2012.  At least one employee must do first aid training with Red Cross.   



 

 
 

4 

Weber asked for input from the Board regarding a highway employee who is a fireman from Delhi and how to take care of 

his hours since it’s his responsibility to certify payroll.  Supervisor Molé will look at what the County policy is on this.  

McIntosh feels it should be allowed and if it becomes a problem, bring it back to the Board then.  Rossley feels there 

should be a policy since the employee policy is being worked on now.  Molé was in favor as long as it’s not abused.  

Wright feels that it should be allowed as long as it’s handled properly.  It was suggested that he clock out and write 

Fire/EMS on the time card.   

Weber said the sand shed is two-thirds full, fuel usage is down.  The men have been doing repair work on the equipment.  

He would like to get out and cut back roadsides.  The pole saw is not working and he will look at getting it fixed.  If it’s not 

something that can be fixed, he would like to replace it.  Councilman McIntosh asked about keeping track of expenses 

allocated to each truck as repairs are being done.  Weber said that he’s working on the new program and currently 

documents on paper.   

Councilman McIntosh asked Weber about what he said in his campaign letter that was sent to some voters complaining 

about the mechanic.  Weber responded that he is sick and tired of McIntosh’s BS and left the meeting at 8:26 PM.  

Councilman McIntosh said that mechanical work is being sent out which is something Weber criticized the former 

Highway Superintendent about.   

 

Supervisor Molé said that she will meet with the Clerk to have the changes put into the Employee Policy.  She will get the 

Code of Ethics Policy that the County uses and have that added. 

 

Supervisor Molé said that it’s been reported in the paper that the Andes and Bovina Court will be sharing space in Andes.  

Our facility is not ADA compliant, the Andes Court building is in disrepair, and they are looking at a different location and 

renovating it.  Andes has to move ahead with or without Bovina.  She said that Bovina and Andes Boards need to have 

another joint meeting.  McIntosh said that Judge Way is upset about what he reads in the paper.  McIntosh told him the 

Board will talk to him before anything is done. 

 

Councilman Wright said he wanted to go back to the truck being taken out for repair.  He said that the new mechanic was 

insistent on sending it out and that Wright recommended Jaime’s Truck Service. 

 

Councilman Rossley said that he looked into the tax money per school system in Bovina and the cost of educating one 

child that was brought to the Board by Don Farley.  He said that Delaware Academy is an estimation.   

 Delaware Academy 60 student’s 18,694.17/student 

  Bovina Taxes 1,121,650.23 

 South Kortright  9 student’s 29,997.63/student 

  Bovina Taxes 269,978.67 

 Andes   5 student’s 40,441.71/student 

  Bovina Taxes 202,208.57 

 Margaretville  2 student’s 13,351.76/student 

  Bovina Taxes 26,703.51 

Rossley said that he will talk with Farley further about this. 

Rossley asked if the bill from the highway abstract to Jack Robson was taken care of.  It has been.  He also expressed 

concern over the keys that are out for the Community Hall.  He said that the locks may need to be changed.   

 

COMMUNITY CONCERNS 

Glen McGuiness wanted the Board to be aware that there is disputed land in Bovina between he and his ex wife and that 

there will be a lawsuit.  He may need political help getting the case into court. 

 

Vince Trimbell asked who is responsible for knocking down a mailbox when there’s no snow.  He wants to know who is 

responsible for putting the mailbox back up.  Trimbell also said that Boggs Road was plowed early and the second time it 



 

 
 

5 

was plowed it was only half done this winter.  He feels that all Town equipment should be at the Town sheds not at the 

Highway Superintendent’s residence. 

 

Ken Brown said that he thinks there is more damage to the Mack than is being reported.  He also said that in regards to 

the Department of Labor writing up violations, they always find things to write up.  Brown said that in regards to replacing 

the pickup box with a flat bed, perhaps the existing box could be stored to be put back on the truck for resale. 

 

Councilman Wright said that he will be away in March and asked if he should meet with Highway Superintendent Weber 

and submit a report.  Supervisor Molé said it’s up to Wright. 

 

Councilman McIntosh said that three trucks had clutches put in at the highway garage, 2 - 98’s and the Mack, so it’s not 

that it can’t be done.   

 

Councilman Rossley said that he has had a couple people ask him about the Town taking over Binder Road.  Supervisor 

Molé said that it has been maintained by the Town for 60 years.  Councilwoman Stewart asked if it has to be brought up 

to specs.  Councilman McIntosh said it doesn’t because it was taken over as a maintenance thing.  This can’t happen on an 

abandoned road but can on a road that the Town maintains.  He said it should be added to the total mileage so it will help 

with CHIPS funding. 

 

Councilwoman Stewart had a call from a taxpayer saying that the intersection of County Highway 6 and State Route 28 is 

very dark.  They would like to know if the Town would consider a street light.  This would be a County or State issue. 

 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:10 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Catherine Hewitt 

Town Clerk/Collector 

 

 


